
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Planning and Transportation Committee 

 
Date: TUESDAY, 9 SEPTEMBER 2025 

Time: 9.15 am 

Venue: LIVERY HALL - GUILDHALL 

 
Members: Deputy Tom Sleigh (Chair) 

Shravan Joshi MBE (Deputy 
Chair) 
Tana Adkin KC 
Samapti Bagchi 
Matthew Bell 
Deputy Emily Benn 
Deputy John Edwards 
Anthony David Fitzpatrick 
Deputy Marianne Fredericks 
Alderman Alison Gowman CBE 
Alderman Prem Goyal CBE 
Deputy Madush Gupta 
Josephine Hayes 
Deputy Jaspreet Hodgson 
Amy Horscroft 
Philip Kelvin 
Alderwoman Elizabeth Anne King,
BEM JP 
 

Charles Edward Lord, OBE JP 
Antony Manchester 
Tim McNally 
Sophia Mooney 
Deputy Alastair Moss 
Alderwoman Jennette Newman 
Deborah Oliver 
Deputy Henry Pollard 
Alderman Simon Pryke 
Deputy Nighat Qureishi 
Gaby Robertshaw 
Hugh Selka 
Naresh Hari Sonpar 
William Upton KC 
Matthew Waters 
Jacqui Webster 
 

 
 
Enquiries: Judith Dignum 

judith.dignum@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 
 

Accessing the virtual public meeting 
Members of the public can observe all virtual public meetings of the City of London 

Corporation by following the below link: 
https://www.youtube.com/@CityofLondonCorporation/streams  

 
A recording of the public meeting will be available via the above link following the end of 
the public meeting for up to one civic year. Please note: Online meeting recordings do not 
constitute the formal minutes of the meeting; minutes are written and are available on the 
City of London Corporation’s website. Recordings may be edited, at the discretion of the 
proper officer, to remove any inappropriate material. 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/@CityofLondonCorporation/streams


2 
 

 
Whilst we endeavour to livestream all of our public meetings, this is not always possible 
due to technical difficulties. In these instances, if possible, a recording will be uploaded 
following the end of the meeting. 

 
Ian Thomas CBE 

Town Clerk and Chief Executive 
 



3 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

Part 1 - Public Agenda 
 
1. APOLOGIES 

 
 

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF 
ITEMS ON THE AGENDA 

 
 

3. CITY FUND HIGHWAY DECLARATION: 60 QUEEN VICTORIA STREET, EC4N 
4TR 

 

 Report of the City Surveyor. 
 

 For Decision 
 (Pages 5 - 12) 

 
4. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE 

 
 

5. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
 
 

6. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 

 MOTION – That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that they involve 
the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of the Schedule 12A of 
the Local Government Act. 
 

 For Decision 
  

 
Part 2 - Non-public Agenda 

 
7. REVIEW OF PUBLIC PARKING PROVISION AT MINORIES CAR PARK 
 

 Joint report of the City Surveyor and the Executive Director, Environmental. 
 

 For Decision 
 (Pages 13 - 24) 

 
8. NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 

COMMITTEE 
 
 

9. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND 
WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE 
PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Committee(s): 
Planning and Transportation Committee – For decision 

Dated: 9 September 2025 

Subject: City Fund Highway Declaration: 60 Queen 
Victoria Street, EC4N 4TR 

Public 
 

Which outcomes in the City Corporation’s Corporate 
Plan does this proposal aim to impact directly?  

Vibrant Thriving Destination 
Flourishing Public Spaces 

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or 
capital spending? 

No 

If so, how much? n/a 

What is the source of Funding? n/a 

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the 
Chamberlain’s Department? 

n/a 

Report of: City Surveyor and Executive Director Property  
CS.210/25 

For Decision 

Report author: Tom Hodgkiss – Principal Surveyor - 
CPG 

 
Summary 

 
Approval is sought to declare a parcel of airspace City Fund highway land, 
measuring approximately 187.7 sq ft (17.44 sq m), located at the entrance of 60 
Queen Victoria Street, EC4N 4TR, as surplus to highway requirements. This 
declaration will enable its disposal in support of the permitted development at 
the site. 
 
The permitted development involves the expansion of the building’s entrance at 
ground and first floor levels on the south-western corner of 60 Queen Victoria 
Street. Planning permission was granted on 27 December 2023 (ref: 
23/01422/FULMAJ). The proposed entrance encroaches upon City Fund land 
by 187.7 sq ft and extends vertically to a height of 18.55m AOD. The land in 
question is not public highway and will not impact the public highway. The 
developer, DWS GRUNDSBESITZ GMBH has requested to agree terms for 
occupation of this land prior to the commencement of construction. 
 
As a prerequisite to disposal, the land must first be declared surplus to highway 
requirements. Subject to this declaration, the disposal terms will be submitted 
for approval under the City Surveyor’s Delegated Authority in consultation with 
the Chamberlain. 
 

Recommendation(s) 

Members are asked to: 
 

• Resolve to declare a parcel of City Fund highway land, measuring 187.7 sq ft 
and situated at the entrance of 60 Queen Victoria Street, EC4N 4TR, surplus 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 

to highway requirements to facilitate its disposal on terms to be approved under 
the City Surveyor’s Delegated Authority. 
 
 

Main Report 

 

Background 
 

 
1. The property at 60 Queen Victoria Street, EC4N 4TR, is a nine-storey office 

development originally constructed in 1999. It occupies a prominent corner site 
at the junction of Queen Victoria Street and Queen Street. 

 
2. The permitted development includes comprehensive refurbishment of the office 

accommodation, enhancements to the ground floor entrance, basements, and 
roof levels, and the addition of a new storey at roof level. The final configuration 
will comprise basement, ground, and ten upper floors. A roadside image of the 
expanded entrance is provided in Appendix 1. 

 
3. The expanded entrance encroaches into City Fund land by 187.7 sq ft at ground 

and first floor levels (12.05m to 18.55m AOD). This land is not part of the 
adopted public highway. The design has been deemed acceptable by the 
planning officer as part of the planning consent. A land parcel plan is included 
in Appendix 2. 

 
4. The City’s Public Access Map initially classified the land as a Permissive Path. 

However, this was later confirmed to be an error. The Highway Authority did not 
adopt the land, and it is not subject to routine highway inspections. Despite this, 
the land remains under City Fund ownership and its disposal will not affect 
highway functionality. The Highway Authority supports the disposal, and no 
technical approval is required. 

 
5. The developer, DWS GRUNDSBESITZ GMBH seeks to regularise its use of 

the affected land in line with the approved development. 
 

6. The airspace in question was acquired by the City in 1957 under the 
Metropolitan Paving Act 1817 for highway purposes. 

 
Current Position 
 

7. DWS GRUNDSBESITZ GMBH has approached the City Corporation to acquire 
a suitable interest in the land to support its development. 

 
8. Should the land be declared surplus, the City Corporation may proceed with its 

disposal. The City Surveyor will approve the terms under Delegated Authority. 
 

9. The Committee’s agreement to declare the land surplus is required before 
disposal can proceed. 
 

Page 6



 

10. The declaration excludes any adopted public highway, which remains vested in 
the City Corporation as Highway Authority. Therefore, no stopping-up order is 
necessary. 
 
 

Proposals 
 

11. The land is not required for public highway use. Subject to Committee approval, 
it is proposed that the City Corporation disposes of a suitable interest in the 
land on terms to be approved by the City Surveyor under Delegated Authority. 

 
 
Corporate & Strategic Implications  
 

12. Strategic implications –  
 

• Flourishing Public Spaces 

• Vibrant Thriving Destination 
 

13. Financial implications – Disposal terms will be approved by the City Surveyor 
in consultation with the Chamberlain, contingent on the surplus declaration with 
an associated receipt into City Fund. 

 
14. Resource implications – None 

 
15. Legal implications – Disposal is authorised under Section 9 of the City of 

London (Various Powers) Act 1958. Terms must reflect the City Corporation’s 
fiduciary duties. 
 
 

16. Risk implications – None   
 

17. Equalities implications – No equalities issues identified. 
 
18. Climate implications – None 
 
19. Security implications – None 

 
 
Conclusion 
 

20. The parcel of City Fund land is not required for highway purposes and may be 
declared surplus. Subject to this declaration, the land will be disposed of through an 
appropriate legal interest and on commercial terms to regularise its use in accordance 
with the granted planning permission. 
 

  

Page 7



 

Appendices 
 

• Appendix 1 – Photo of relevant entranceway at 60 Queen Victoria Street, 
EC4N 4TR 

• Appendix 2 – Committee Plan – 60 Queen Victoria Street EC4N 4TR – 
Entrance (City Fund) (4-C-43836 -02) 
 
 
 

 
Tom Hodgkiss 
Principal Surveyor 
City Surveyor's Department 
 
T: 07712235581 
E: thomas.hodgkiss@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 

 

 

 

Page 8

mailto:thomas.hodgkiss@cityoflondon.gov.uk


Appendix 1 – Entrance at 60 Queen Victoria Street, EC4N 4TR 

Existing  

 

 

 

 

 

  

P
age 9



Proposed 

The existing entrance is being extended by 1.34 metres and will feature a glazed perimeter wall with a 

revolving door projecting outward, approximately 1 metre in radius. 

 

 

 

 

 

  

P
age 10



Q U E E N    V
 I C T O R I A    S

 T R E E T

Q
 U

 E
 E

 N
   

  S
 T

 R
 E

 E
 T

Q
 U

 E
 E

 N
   

S 
T 

R
 E

 E
 T

P A N C R A S    L A N E

S I S E    L A N
 E

W E L L    C O U R T 

Cycle

Lobby

Core

(Eastern)

Reception

+ 13.250 m AOD

Class E

Core

(Central)

Q U E E N    V
 I C T O R I A    S

 T R E E T

Q
 U

 E
 E

 N
   

  S
 T

 R
 E

 E
 T

Q
 U

 E
 E

 N
   

S 
T 

R
 E

 E
 T

P A N C R A S    L A N E

S I S E    L A N
 E

W E L L    C O U R T 
LN151378

NGL885622

60 QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

A
G

L6
28

73
0

Reception

13

50

21 to 25

1 to 7

The Walbrook Building

61

44 to 46

PH

62

27

63

67

14

40 to 42

28

60

1 
to

 2

PH

14

28

64

65

15

APOSTLE

W
AL

BR
O

O
K

GREAT ST THOMAS

CANNON STREET

Bloomberg Arcade

Q
ue

en
 S

tre
et

Subway

TCB

10.0m
11.7m

10.8m

32

42

30

5

47

7 to 10

67 to 69

Offices

Church of St Stephen

6

31

Church

70

29

44

52a

1a

38

71

25

90

1 
to

 5

10
 to

 1
5

4

54

2

St
 M

ar
y-

le
-B

ow

1

6

3

12

70

13

4

36 to 38

12

10

8

11

C
hu

rc
h

46

37

Law Courts

27 to 32

Walbrook

61 to 64

9

2

11

9

72

68

Queens House

70 to 80

6564

48

39 to 53

43

67 to 69

3

PH

1

38

Probation

PH

66

York House

49 to 51

St Mary Aldermary

PH

72

40

52

1

85

8

1

10

74 to 82

12

9
7

(reconstructed)

TEMPLE OF MITHRAS

Remains of

BUCKLERSBURY

STREET

G
RO

CE
RS

' H
AL

L 
CO

UR
T

WALBROOK

SISE LAN
E

QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

Q
U

EE
N

 S
TR

EE
T

Well Court

CHEAPSIDE

QUEEN VICTORIA

BO
W

 L
AN

E

PANCRAS LANE

POULTRY

Bow Churchyard

C
ro

w
n 

C
ou

rt

Bond Court

Bucklersbury Passage

TCBs

LB

LB

TCB

TCBs

16
.0

m

14.0m

12.3m

12.6m

11.4m

60 QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

P.G.Wilkinson BSc MSc MRICS
City Surveyor

CITY SURVEYOR'S DEPARTMENT
Corporate Property Group :

Plans & Records Section

Transfer of ownership from the City of London freehold title
number LN151378 to Heron 40-66 Queen Victoria Street Limited
Dated 26th March 1998, C&CS document Ref. R.14979

City of London freehold title number LN151378 excluded from
the transfer between 1.2 meters below the surface of such land
and 5.3 meters above the land mentioned in the transferred land
to Heron 40-66 Queen Victoria Street.
Dated 26th March 1998, C&CS document Ref. R.14979

Projections licence granted by the City of London to
Heron 40-66 Queen Victoria Street Limited
Dated 24th September 2000, C&CS document Ref. R.16227

Topographical Site Plan of Existing Ground Floor
Scale 1:250

Location Plan
Scale 1:250

Proposed Entrance Area Ground Floor
Scale 1:250

Proposed Ground
Scale 1:250

City of London registered freehold titles AGL628730, NGL761023
and LN151378.

60 Queen Victoria Street
London EC4

Ownership Review Plan

1 : 1250, 1:250 @ A0 KT

Mar 2025

4-C-43836 -02

Drawing based upon information supplied
by Sheppard Robson LLP Architects,
Plowman Craven surveys and
legal documentation.

Line work taken from a Plowman Craven topographical survey,
drawing number 4810-PCL-TO-XX-DR-Y-00001.
Dated May 2023

KEY

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved 100023243

Proposed Entrance Area First Floor
Scale 1:250

Proposed extension of entrance between
AOD Levels : Lower level = +12.05m , Upper level = +18.55m
GEA Area = 17.44 m² / 187.7 sq. ft

Existing BMU
Area = 292 m² / 3,143 sq. ft

Extract of Sheppard Robson elevational plan
Drawing no. 6356-SRA-XX-XX-DR-A-SK023 Rev P03

Proposed Entrance Area Ground Floor
Not to Scale

P
age 11

AutoCAD SHX Text
Rev

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
Address :

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
Print scale :

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
Date :

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
Drawing No :

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
Revision 

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
Drawn

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
Drawn by :

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
Title :

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
Pro code

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
UPRN

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
N



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 12



Document is Restricted

Page 13

Agenda Item 7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 City Fund Highway Declaration: 60 Queen Victoria Street, EC4N 4TR
	03 Appendix 1 entranceway 60QVS
	03 Appendix 2 Committee Plan 60QVS
	Sheets and Views
	Ownership Review 02



	7 Review of Public Parking Provision at Minories Car Park

